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Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(j) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controlis.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. .

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in -our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Centrai
Govermnment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d. We have suuyghl and oblained all lhe information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32(b) to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

™0

the Note 42(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 42(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security. or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, evrapt far the instanres mentinned helnw,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
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BSR&Co.LLP

independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

feature of recording audit trait (edit log) facility at the application level, and the same has been
operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares:

- In the absence of independent auditor's report in relation to controls at service organization for
accounting softwares used for maintaining the baoks of account relating to inventary process and
absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with audit trail requirements in the
independent auditor's report of a service organization for accounting softwares used for
maintaining the books of account relating to invoicing and procure to pay process, which is
operated by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether audit trail
feature of the said sofiware was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

— In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with audit trail
requirements in the independent auditor's report of a service organization for the accounting
software used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger and payroll records,
which are operated by a third party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether
the feature of audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated at the database level to log
any direct data changes.

—  With respect to business acquired during the current year (refer note 40 of financial statements),
for the accounting software used for maintaining books of account relating to inventory process
and invoicing and customer database process, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
was not enabled for all relevant transactions.

—  With respect to business acquired during the current year (refer note 40 of financial statements),
in the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with audit trail
requirements in the independent auditor's report of the service organization for the accounting
software used for maintaining the books of account relating to general tedger, which are operated
by a third party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail
feature for the said software was enabled and operated for all relevant transactions recorded in
this software.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the respective accounting
softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

/——
ﬁéﬁﬁ G N ,.Z ?\Aﬁﬁ\
Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 060573
Date: 05 July 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPD7269
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (8) (A) The Comipany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

©

(d)

(e)

(i) (@)

(b)

(i)

()

v

(v

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the-Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’). In
respect of the investments made and loan given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions
of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

manufactured by it and services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases of professional tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks,
statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is if any
million) amount pending
relates
Income ™ Tax | Income 16.02 Assessment Commissioner | None
Act, 1961 Tax (2.17)* year 2017-18 | of Income Tax
(Appeals),
Mumbai

* Amounts mentioned in parenthesis represent payments made under protest

(viii)

(ix) (a

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks or financial institutions or any other
lender, except those mentioned below:
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Continued)
Nature of Amount not Whether No. of days Remarks, if
borrowing paid on due principal or delay or any
including debt date (Rs. in interest unpaid
securities million)
Borrowings Multiple
from  Holding | 1,921.15 Interest 1 to 29 days instances of the
Company delay

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

V)] According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

() (a)

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly conventible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(xi) (a)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi} (a)

(b)

(c)

@

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended) does not
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 910.71 in the current financial year and Rs.
3,245.00 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and there is no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financlal Statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.;101248W/W-100022

S G

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 060573
Date: 05 July 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPD7269
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Scootsy Logistics
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate intemnal financial contrais with
reference to financial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management’'s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
intemal financial controls based on the intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controis with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Scootsy Logistics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financiai controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

G

Sampad Guha Thakurta

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 060573
Date: 05 July 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060573BKFGPD7269
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Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{All amount in X Millions, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assats
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of- use assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Income tax assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financlal assets

Other assets

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES
Equity .
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Liabllitles
Nan-current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabillties
Provislons
Total non-current labilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabllitles
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises; and
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other liabliities
Provisions
Total current liabllities
Total llabliities
Total equity and Habilities

Material accounting policies _
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firnys Registraticg Nu —

4

y 1012480/ W-100022

Sampad Gufia Thakurta
Partner
Membership No: 060573

Place: Bengaluru

Date: €5 '_Tulﬁ Q.ODJ\'

Director
DIN: 06686145

Place: Bengaluru
Date ! lune 28, 2024

Not As at As at
€ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3 4,066.62 2,240.91
37 4,481.28 3,733.02
4 3,816.08 .
4 506.69 106.42
11 769.17 627.06
K 305.13 289.88
12 68.09 55.08
14,013.06 7,0572.37
[ 419.94 47.15
7 1,312.72 4,122.70
8 8,467.26 7,300.30
9 985.28 4,352.97
10 30.07 300.00
11 1,030.59 482.63
12 1,315.72 1,128.93
13,561.58 17,734.68
22,574.64 24,792.05
13 13.56 7.18
14 (7,001.22) 16,897.04)
(6,987.66) (6,889.86)
15 24,307.58 25,143.69
37 3,073.58 2,604.26
17 - 374.37
13 20.60 8.57
27,401.76 28,130.85
15 1,945.08 -
37 1,569.52 1,219.69
16 298.91 51.09
3,068.43 1,117.39
17 143.26 992.95
19 80.38 141.04
18 50.96 28.86
7.160.54 3,551.02
34,56230 31,681.91
27.574.64 24,792.05
2
Jor and on behalf of the
Scootsy Logistics Private
J
Lakshmi Nandan Reddy Ob#j n Addepalli

DIN: 10074650

Place: Bengaluru
Date : June 28, 2024



Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Statement of Prafit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
fAll amount In X Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Nate Year ended Year ended
“ March 31, 2024 March 33, 2003

Income

Revenue from operations 20 51,956.52 36,861.86

Other income 21 389.70 £§9.92
Total income 52,346.22 36,931.78
Expenses

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 22 45,341.87 31,746.54

Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 (118.43) {32.85)

Employee benefits expense 24 1,268.17 585.73

Finance costs 25 2,545.88 2,028.40

Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 3,023.72 1,535.86

Other expenses 27 4,469.07 5,138.44
Tatal expensas 56,530.22 41,002.12
Loss hefare exceptional items and tax {4,184.00) {4,070.33)

Exceptional items 28 {55.72)

Loss before tax (4,239.72) {4,070.33)

Tax expense;

Current tax : )
Deferred tax -
Total tax expense - .
Loss far the year {4,239.72) {4,070.34)
Other comprehensive Income/{lass), net of tax

items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

- Re-measurement gain/ (loss) an defined benefit plans (Refer note 31(b)) (4.05) 4.03
Other camprehensive income/ {loss) for the year (4.05) 4.09
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (4,243.77) M‘aoﬁﬁﬂl
Lass per equity share - Basic and Diluted (in %) (face value of % 10.00 each) 29 (4,738.61) (5.814.00)
Material accounting policles 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of,
for BSR& Co, LLP Scootsy Logistics Private Limi

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 101243W/W-100022 J) ) w}ﬁ/

Sampad Guifa Thakurta Lakshmi Nandan Reddy Obul . » m@ Addepalli

Partner Director 2 - rector
Membership Mo: 060573 OIN: 06686145 DIN: 10074650
Place: Bengalury Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 05 'T"*J‘:j 203l Date : June 28, 2024 Date : June 28, 2024



Scootsy Logisties Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amount in X Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash Now from operating activities
Loss before tax (4,239.72} (4,070.34)

Adjustments ta reconcile the foss befare tax to net cosh flows:
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,023.72 1,535.86
Interest on barrowings 2,134.49 1,728.09
Interest on |ease llabilities 410.20 296.89
Interest expense on financial liability carried at amortised cost 113 3.14
Interest income on security deposits carried at amortised cost (45.64) {33.25)
Share based payment expense 256.64 29.51
Gain on termination of leases (63.56) {18.14)
Interest Income (20.68) {13.81)
Interest on income tax refund {16 42) .
Alfowances far doubtful debts and receivables : 288.06 42.80
Allawances for doubtful advances 172.74 ..
Loss on dispasal / write off of praperty, plant and equipment 141.72 52.48
Income on investments carrled at fair value through profit or loss (242.63) (3.72}
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (refer note 28) 55.72 -

Operating profit / {loss) before working capital adjustments 1,855.83 (451.49)

Mavements in working capltal :
Increase in inventaries {118.49) (32.85)
{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables {1,154.44) 913,20
Increase in other financial assets (724.75) {564.66)
{Increase) / decrease in ather current assets {127.83) 167.07
{Increase) / decrease in other non-current assets 28.85 (0.33)
Increase / {decrease) in trade payakie 2,070.45 (449.66)
increase / {decrease) in financial liabilities {347.36) 209.65
Increase / (decrease) in ather liabillties (65.86) 30.44
Increase in provisions 25.06 36.61

Cash used in operating activities 1,441.66 {142.02)
income tax paid (net of refund) 4.17 [232.58)

Net cash from / (used in} aperating actlvities [A) 1,445.83 (374.60)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (3.453.32) {1,462.14)

{Including movement in capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 21.09 6.63
Purchase of net assets, goadwill and other intangible assets on account

N " (3,855.39)
on business acqulsition
Purchase of investments {12,713.66) {4,118.98)
Proceeds from sale/ maturity of investments 15,766.27 -
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) {4!!!5.011 (5,5?-1.43.
Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (1,363.32) {1,075.88)
bayment of interest portion of lease liabilities (410.20} -
Proceeds from borrowings 4,352.52 11,667 09
Repayment of borrawings {5,467 49) .
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 3,900.00 -
fixed deoosit (created)/ realised 269,93 (300.00)
Interest on Fixed deposit 20.72 0.95
Interest on borrawings {2.196.69) (1.163.90}
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) (894.53) 9,124.26
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) {3,683.71) 3,175.17
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through business combination (refer note 40) 136.60 +
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,352.97 1,177.80
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 805.86 4,352.97

< This space has been intentionally left blank>




Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows far the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amount in X Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Cornpanents af Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand (refer note 3)

Cheques in hand {refer note 9)

Balances with banks
- In current accounts (refer note 9)
- In deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) {refer note 9)
Bank overdraft repayable on demand {refer note 15)

Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconcillation af liabilities arising from financing activites:

Lease liabilities {refer note 37)
BorrowlIngs [Refer note 15}

Lease llabifities {refer nate 37)
Borrowings (Refer note 15)

Material accounting policles (refer note 2)
Tha accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22,70
87.46 .
675.05 4,352.37
200.07 .
{179.42) .
805.86 4,352.97
ok Cash flows Non cash changes DL
Aprit 1, 2022 . e March 31, 2023
1,987.60 (1,079.88) 2,916.23 3,823.95
13,476.60 11,667.09 25,143.69
Asat As at
April 1, 2023 Cash flows Nan rash changes March 31, 2024
3,823.95 {1,773.52) 2,592.67 4,643.10
25,143.69 305.28 807.68 26,256.66

As per our report of even date attached Jfor and on behalf of the Boardff 4
for BSR& Co. LLP Scootsy Lagistics Private
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Num:ir; 101248W/W-100022 ’) &W &
Sampad Guhf Thakurta Lakshmi Nandan Reddy Obul depalll
Partner Director Director

= Membership No: 060573 DIN: 06686145 DIN: 10074650
Bengalury Bengaluru Bengaluru

Date : June 28, 2024 Date : June 28, 2024

Date: OS5 :I‘.dt] 03



Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

Statement af Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amaunt in T Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital (refer note 13{i))

As at Aprii 01, 2022

Add: Shares issued on conversion of Compulsarily Convertible Curmulative Preference Shares {"CCCPS") to

equity shares
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2024

b. Instruments entirely equity in nature (refer note 13(ii))

As at April 01, 2022

Add: Issued during the year

Less: Converted to equity share capital during the year
As at March 31, 2023

Add: Issued during the year
As at Mareh 31, 2024

¢. Other equity (refer note 14}

As at April 01, 2022
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Tatal comprehensive income/{lass)

Cantributions by and distribution ta owners
Share based payment expense {Refer nate 24)
As at March 31, 2023 :
Loss far the year
Other comprehenslve income
Tatal comprehensive income/(lass)

Contributions by and distribution to owners
Issue of share capital (Refer note 13)
Share based payment expense (Refer note 24)
As at March 31, 2024 .

Material accounting policies (refer note 2)

Equity share capital
(Equity shares of X 10)
Number Amount

6,76,153 6.76
42481 0.42
7,18,634 7.18
6,38,089 6.38
13,56,723 13.56

Instruments entirely equity in nature (CCCPS

of X 10)
Number Amaount
42,481 0.42
{42,481) (0.42)

Attributable to the Shareholders of the Company

items of Other
Reserve and surplus comprehensive
Income/{loss)
Tatal
Securities Share based e
. . Retalned earnings (loss) on defined benefit
premium payment reserve
plans

1,060.90 1.40 {3,924.90) 2.30 (2,860.30)

- - (4,070.34) e (4,070.34)

- * - 4.09 4.09
1,060,390 1.40 (7,995.24) §.39 (6,926.55)

- 29.51 - = 29.51
1,060.90 30,91 (7.=995.11] 6539 {s.gs:*.m

S = (4,239.72) - (4,239.72)

- . . (4.05) (4.05)
1,060.90 30.31 (12,234.96) 2.34 (11,140.81)
3,893.62 3,893.62

B8 245.97 B e 245.97
4,954.52 276.88 {12,234.95) 234 l?.ml.ﬁ

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No: 060573

Place: Bengaluru

mte ©5 :fldj 2034

Scootsy Logistics Private Liml i
Lakshmi Nandan Reddy Obul ) PhanNédshan Addepalli
Director Directar

DIN: 06686145 DIN: 10074650

Place: Rengaluru Place: Bengaluru
D4te: June 78, 1M4 Nara - thna 28, N4



Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Note 2 - Material accounting policies

1 Company averview
Scootsy Logistics Private Limited (“the Company” or "Scootsy") was incorporated on November 27, 2014 as a private limited company. The Company has its
registered office at Bangalore .

The Company is into the 828 distribution and supply chain managerent services for all types of consumer progucts, which includes warehouse management
services and logistics/last mile logistics services, deploying logistics management systems, provide inbound/pracurement support and other support services
related to wholesale trading and supply chain management service.

The company has acquired 100% sharss of Lynks from Holding company against a cash consideration of INR 3,855.39 million. Post 100% share acquisition of
Lynks by the Company, Business of Lynks was transferred to Company on a slump sale basis under a Business Transfer Agreement datea Dec 25, 2023,

Lynks is engaged in the business of authorised distribution of fast-moving consumer goods ta kirana stores, small retailers etc. Refer note 40 for further
details.

2 Material accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
“he financial Statements of the Company comprise of the Balance Sheet as ar March 31, 2024, the Statemen: of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024, Material Accounting Policies,
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2624 (together referred to as 'financial statements’) has been prepared under Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, {'the Act’) and other relevant provisians of the Act as amended from
time zo time.

The financial staternents of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved and autharised for i1ssue in accardance with the resolution of the
Board of Directors on june 28, 2024,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Comgany’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to tne
nearest million, unless otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Incian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis,
except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

- defined benefit plans - measured at fair value;

- share-based payments and

- assets and [iabilities arising in a business combination

The material accounting policies used in preparation of the firancial statements have been discussed in the respective notes.

2.2 Busi combination and goodwill
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liahilities incurred or assumed at the date of
acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Company. The cost of acquisition also inctudes the fair value of any contingent
cansideration. Identifiable assets acquired, llabilities and contingent liabilities assurned in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on
the date of acquisition. '

Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as capital reserve.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabllities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate cansideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used 1o measure the amounts to be recognised at
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still resuits in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is na clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the
gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCL.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumuiated impairment 'osses. For the purpose of impairmert testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of tne acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goocwill has been allocated is tested for impairment at each reporting period as presented, or mare frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less thar it’s carrying amount, the impairment ioss is
allacated first 10 reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of he unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset ir the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversad in subsequent periods. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is dispased of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gair or l0ss on disposal. Goodwili
disposed in these circumstances is measured based cn the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cagli-generating unit retained.

Business cambinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the pravisions of Ind AS 103%\

o




Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Note 2 - Material accounting palicies

2.2 Business combination and goodwlll {Contd..)
Paoling of interest method
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, prescribes significantly different accounting for business combinations which are nat under common control and those
under common control.

Business cambinatians involving entities or businesses under cammon control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.

The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following:

i)The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

ii)No adjustments are made to reflect fair vaiues or racognize any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments tnat are made are 1o harmonies accounting
policies.

iii]The identity of the reserves has been preserved and apoear in the firancial information of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the
finantial iInformation of the transferor

2.3 Use of estimates, assumptians and judgements

The preparstion of the financial statements in confarmity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptians that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of cantingent assets and liabilities on the date of the financial stacements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the year reported. Actual ~asults could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the periad in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected

ey saurce of estimation of uncertainty as at the date of financial statements, whith may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabibicies within the next financizl year, is in respect of the fallowina:

Fair value measurement of financial instrumencs

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measurad based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possitile, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and valatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,
The policy has been further explained under note 2.12,

b Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation is determined using
actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complesities involved in the valuation and its tong-term nature, 3
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most
subject to change is the discaunt rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates
of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit abligation.

The mortality rate is based an publicly available mortality tables These mortality tables tend to change anly at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity Increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The assumptions and models used for defined benefiz plan are
disclosed in nate 31.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats

a

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipmen: and intangible assets 3 the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may resuls
in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

d Taxes
The Company’s tax jurisdiction 1s India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes ang tax cradits including the amount
expected to be paid or refunded. The Campany revisws the carrying amount of de‘erred tax assets at the end of each reporing period The palicy for the
same has been explained under note 2.18.




Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Note 2 - Material accounting policies

2.3 Use of estimates, ions and judg its (Contd..)

e Business combination
In accounting for business combinations, judgment is required whether Company has control over the entily acquired. Control is achieved when the
Company Is exposed, ar has rights, ta variable returns fram its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its pawer over
the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has:
<Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the currant ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
«The ability to use its power over the investee ta affect its returns.
«Exgosure cr rights to variable return from its involvernent with the investee

Generally, there is 3 presumption that a majority of vating rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Company considers all refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

sThe contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

aThe Company's voting rights and‘ potential voting rights

The size af the Company's halding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the ather voting rights holders.

*Right arising from other contractual arrangements.

Key assumptlons in estimating the acqulsition date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities, identlfying whether an identifiable intangible
asset is to be recorded separately from gaodwill.

f Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies ra be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, identification of a fease requires significart judgment
Tha Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a iease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and perlods coverad by an oation to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
3 lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exerclse the option to extend the lease, or not
to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the nan-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental barrowing rate to the lease being eva uated or for a partfalia of Jeases with similar characteristics.

g Impairment of goodwill

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested For impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

The impairment indicators, the estimation of expectea future cash flows and the determination of the fair value of CGU (including Goodwill) require the
Management to make significant judgements, estimates and assumptions concerning the identification and validation of impairment indicators, falr value of
assets, revenue growth rates and operating margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, relevant risk-acjusted discaunt rate, future economic and
market canditions, etc.

x

Provisions and contingent liabilitles

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events and it is prabable that outflow of rescurces will be required to
settle the obligatians. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflact the current best estimates. The Company
uses significant judgement to disclose contingent liabilties. Contingent liabilities are disclased when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the octurrence or nan-occurrence of ane ar more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present abligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements

2.4 Current and Nan-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets/inputs for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification

An assetis treated as current when it is:

> expected to be realised or intended ta be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpase of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

> Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabitity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: .

> Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycte

> Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

> There is no unconaitional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company cfassifles all other liahilit'es as nan-current.

ra




Scootsy Logistics Private Limited
Note 2 - Material accaunting policies

2.5 Revenue recognition

2

2.7

o

Revenue from operations arimarily consists of revenue from sale of traded goods of FMCG products in the 828 segment, income from warehousing and rental
services

General revenue recognition :
Revenue is recagnisad at the goint in time when value ard control is transferred to the custamer, at the time of delivery to a customer and it is probable that
the Company wil} collect the related consideration. Revenue is measured net of discounts and other sales-related taxes.

Income from sale af gaods:

Revenue from sale of goocs are recognised when the performance obligations are satisfied i.e. when “contral” of the goods underlying the performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Accordingiy, revenue f-om the sale of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and it 1s
probable that the Company will collect the related consideration

Revenue from supply chain services

Revenue from suaply chain services are recognised aver time as the customer simultaneously avails the benefits of these services based an the custome-
contract. Hence, the revenue from such services is recagnised on a monthly basis, basis the amount computed as per the contract

Other operating income

Incame from services rendered is recognised over time on a systematic basis in accordance with the terms of agrecment entered into with the custamer

Otherincome:
Profit on sale of mutval funds and fair value impact an mark-to-market contracts are recognised on transaction campletion and or on reporting Jate as
applicable

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method or time-proportlon method, basad on rates implicit in the transaction.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment lasses, if any. The cost comprises purchase oprice,
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cast of bringing the plant and equipment te its working candition for the intended use
and cost of replacing pact of the plant and equipment

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervais, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection 1s performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All ather repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cast of the respective asset if the recognition crileria for 3 provision are met.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is prabable that the future econamic benefits assaciated with the axpenditure will flow to the Company and
the cast of the item can be measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of the assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the
assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are derecognized.

Capital work in progress:

Amount paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment
not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. The capital work- in-pragress is carried at cost, comprising direct
cast, related incidental expenses and attributable interest, No depreciatian is charged on the capital work in progress until the asset is ready for the intended
use

Intanglble assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired In o business combination are
measured at fair value at the date of aquisition. Fol'owing initial recognitian, intangible assats are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). internal'y generated intangibies, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amartised over the useful econamic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful iife are reviewed at feast at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or tre expected pattarn of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered ta modify the amortisation period or method, as aopropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset s derecognised
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Depreciation and amoartisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and amortisation on intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated on 3 straight-line basis over the
useful lives of the assets estimated by the management.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provida depreciation on plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets:

Asset category Useful lives estimated by the management
Office equipment )

Compuser equipment 3

Furniture and fixtures* 5

Leasehold improvements Lower of iease term or useful life
Vendor Relationships® 6

Technalogy* 6

Computer software E]

"Based on an internal technical evaluation, management believes that the useful lives in the table above are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely ta he used. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different fram the usefu! lives as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule I! of the Companies Act, 2013

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Depreciation an additions/ disposals is provided an 3 pra-rata hasis i.e., from/ up to the date on which asset is ready for use/ disposed of.

Intangible  assets with finitz lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
periad and the amortisation mettod for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting peried. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are adjusted prospectively.

Impairment

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s ‘mpaired. Ind AS 109 {‘Financial instruments’)
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ar all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected cradit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12 manth expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit iosses if the credit risk an the financia) asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cast and debt securities at FVOC! are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credlt-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financlal asset have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

esignificant financial difficulty cf the debtor;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;

athe restructuring of a loan or advance by tha Company an terms that the Comoary would not consider otherwise;
sitis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganisation; or

« the disappearance of an active market for a security because of tinancial difficulties.

Presentation of allawance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances far financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOC!, the
loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and 1s recognised in OC!
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Impalrment of non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets including praperty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets with finite life and intangible assets under development are evaluated for
recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. |f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount {i.e.
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an individual asset hasis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amaunt is determined far the CGU to which the asset belongs.

tf the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU} is estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at eacn
reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. if such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s ar CGU’s recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 3 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken inta accaunt, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

A previausly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the !ast impairment loss was recognised The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amaunt, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which tase, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for mpairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than it's carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recagnised for goodwill is nat reversed in subsequent
periods.

Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease assets primarily cansist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the ‘nception of 3 contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Ta assess whether a contract conveys the right to cantrol the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits fram use of the asset thraugh the periad of the lease and (iii) the Company has
the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all eases, except for short-term leases and |eases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities representing obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

i} Right-of-use assats

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or befare the commencement date
less any lease incentives received and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and remaving the underlying asset, restoring the site on
which it is located ar restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease Right-of-use assets are depreclated on
a straight-line oasis aver the shorter of the lease tarm or the estimated useful lives of the assets whichever is earlier.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimatad useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to Impairment. Refer ta the accounting policies in section 2.9,
Impairment of non-financial assets,

il) Lease liabilitles

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The |ease payments inciude fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments) lass any lease incentives receivable, variable lzase payments that
depend on an Index or a rate, and amaunts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also inctude the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option o terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expanses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date as the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest

and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease iiabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease

a change in the assessment of an optian to purchase the underlying asset. The Company’s lease liabilities are Included in financial liabilities.

\Q

term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease paymen\nl)&\.l\

ili) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease exemption (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencemen date and doa
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low 5
payments on short term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Campany as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks ard rewards incidental o ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases
Rental income arising is accounted for an a straight-line basis over the leasz terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the fease term on the same basis as rental income Cantingenrt rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Financial instruments

Financia' instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial iability or equ ty instrument of another entity,

Financ al assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract that gives rise to financial assets and liabilities. Fnanc.al
assets and liabilties are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that ara directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 'oss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
measurad on initial recagnition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company cansiders afl highly liquid ‘inancial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to se cash equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents
consist of dalances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party ta the contracsual provisions of the instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recagnition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
its transaczion cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass. In other cases, the transaction cost is attributed ta the acquisition value of the financial
asset

Financial assets are subsequent classified and measured at:

* Amartised cost

* Fair value through ather comprehensive income (FVOCI)

» Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not raclassified subsequent ta their recognition, axcept during the periad the Company changes its business madel ‘or managing financial
assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost (Debt instrument)

The financial assat is measured a the amartised cast if both the following conditions are met:

aJThe asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hald assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates ta cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP)) an the princioal amaount
outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking inta account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVOCI {Debt instrument)
A debtinstrument is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following canditions and is not desianated as at FVTPL:
3)The asset is held within a business mode! whose obijective is achieved by both callecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

b)Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPIj an the principal
amount outstanding

Derecognition

A financial asset |or, where applicabie, a part of a financial asset or partof a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e , removed from
the balance sheet} when:

*The rights 1o receive casn flows from the asset have expired, or

*The Company has transferred its rights ta recmive cash flows fram the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash Tows in “ull without
materiai delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

{a)the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b)the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially 2il the risks and rewards of the asset but has transfarred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has sntered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent t has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 1, nor
transferred contral of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset ta the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. |

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on 3 basis that reflects the‘ﬁ d
obligations that the Company has retained.
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2.13
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2.15

Financial instruments {Contd..)

Financial assets at FVTPL {Debt Instrument)

FVTPLis a residual category for debt instruments, Any deat instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI,
is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Compary may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTQC) criteria, as at FVTPL. Hawever, such
election is allowed only if daing so reduces or eliminates 3 measurement or recognition incansistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabillties

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost {loans and borrowings,
payables), as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease liabilities, loans and barrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss include financial Habilities held for trading and financial liabi.ities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or 'oss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpase af repurchasing in the near term.

Gains ar losses on liahilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or lass.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value galns/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.
These gains/ |osses are not subsequently transferred to Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Company has not designated any financial ‘iabHity as at fair
value thraugh profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrawings are subsequently measured at amortised cast using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognlsed as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premiumn on acqulsition and faes or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EiR amartisation is included as finance costs in the
Staternent of Prafitand Loss

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liahility is discharged or cancelled ar expives. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another fram the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially madified, such an exchange or
madlfication is treated as the derecognition af the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit ar Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 3 currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention ta settle an a net basis, to realise the assets and settle tae liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement
In determining the fair vaiue of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based an market conditions and

risks existing at each reporting date,

All assets and liabilities for which fair'value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Lavel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that s significant Lo the fair value measurement as a whole) at

the end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprise of all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the
inventaries to their present location and condition, Cost is determined using weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimared selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing cost
Borrowlng costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantlal period of get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ok g

costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cast also In
the extent regarded as an adjustment ta the borrowing costs.

Share issue expenses
Share issue expenses eligible to be capitalised are adjusted witn securities premium.
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2.16 Forelgn currency:
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates, at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recagnition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated ar the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange difterences arlsing on settlement or translation of manetary items are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

2.17 Employee benefits
Employee benefits consists of Salaries, wages, bonus, cantribution to provident and other funds, share based payment expense and staff welfare expense.

Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contributions to defined cantsibution plans {provident fund and €SI) are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the emptoyee
renders related service,

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is carried out based on projected unit credit method
as at the baiance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Statement of Balance Sheet as liability. Actuarial gains
and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liahility/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with ind AS, re-
measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognised in OC! are not to be subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Net interest is calculated by applylng the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

sService costs camprising current service costs, past-service ¢osts, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

«Net interest expense ar income

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits expectéd to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the emplayees
render the service. Compensated absences, which are expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, are treated as short-term employee benefits. The
Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulateq at the reporting date.

Long-term employae benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services
are treated as long-term employee benefits for measurement purpose. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end, Iess the fair value of the plan assets out of which the obligations are expected to be settled.
Actuarlal gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and lass and are not deferred.

The Company presents the entlre compensated absences balance as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to
defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

. 2.18 Taxes on income
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or llability during the year. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in other
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periads are measured at the amount expected ta be recovered fram or paid to the taxation authorities hased on
the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at the
balance sheet date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised autside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OQ or in equity).
The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right ta set off the recognized amounts and where it
intends either to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred income tax

Deferred incame tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except

- when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transactin that is not a business combination and
affects neither accaunting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interast in joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temparary differences wilt not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temgorary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax lasses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
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A orovision is recognized when an enterprisa has a present obligation {legal ar constructive) as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligatian, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation. If the effect of time
value of money is material, provision is discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when apprapriate, the risks specific to the lability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision dus to the passage of time is recognised as a3 finance cost. When some or all of the economic bencfits
required ta settle 3 provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. cantracts where the exoected unavoidable costs of meeting obligations under a contract exceed the econamic benefits
received/ expected to be received, are recognized when it is brobable that an outflow of resources ambodying economic benefits will be required o settle a
present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based an a reliable estimate of such obligation

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arisas from past events whose existance will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present ob igation that is not recognized because it is not prabable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the cobligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured religbly. The Company daes not recognize a contingent l:abitity but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets and liab!lities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if thare is a legally enforceanle right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate ta income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on tha same taxable entity, or on different entities, but they intend ta settle current tax l:abilities and assets an a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statament of Profit and Loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recagnised for
MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay narmal income tax during the specified periad, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recagnizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. Tne Company reviews the “MAT cred't entitlement” asset at each reporting date and
writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer prababie that it will pay normal tax during the specified period

Provision and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when Company has a oresent obligation [legal or canstructive} as a result af past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of time
value of money is material, pravision is discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. When some or all of the economic henefits
required to settle a provislon are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it 's virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amaunt of the receivable zan be measured reliably.

Provisions for anerous contracts, i.e., contracts wnere the expected unavaidable costs of meeting obligations under a contract exceed the economic henefits
expected to be received, are recognized when it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie a present
obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reltable estimate of such obligation.

A contingent liability is 3 possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence ar non-occurrence af one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is nat recognized because it is not prabable that an outflow aof
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingant liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability tnat cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company daes not recognize a cartingent fability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Pravision and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date

Earnings/{lass) per share
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is compured by dividing the profit/{loss) after tax attributable to the equity holders of the Comgany by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(lass) after tax as adjusted for dividend, Interest {net of any attributable taxes) other charges to
expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, oy the weighted average nurmber of equity shares cansidered for deriving basic earnings
per snare and the weighted average number of equity shares which could rave been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Patantial equity snares are deemed to be dilutive only If their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share or increase the net loss per
share. Potential dilurive equity shares are deemed to he converted as at the beginning of the periad, unless they nave been issued at a later date, Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The Campany did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the
years presented.
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Note 2 - Material accounting policies

2.22 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive
Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal arganization and management
structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance, the analysis of geographical
segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate.

Segmentrevenue, segment expenses have been identified to the segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors.
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly identifiable to any
reporting segment have been allocated to respective segments nased on the number orders, number of emplayees as reviewed by CODM.

2.23 Statement of cash flow
Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows,
whereby profit/(loss) for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and jtem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flaws from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Far the purposes of Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the total cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 9 adjusted for Bank
overdraft repayable on demand.

2.24 Events occurring after the balance sheet date.
Based an the nature of the event, the Company identifies the events occurring between the aalance sheet date and the date on which the financial
statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the kalance
sheet date that provide additional informatlon materiaily affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date
or because of statutary requirements or because of their special nature. For nan-adjusting events, the Company may provide a disclasure in the financial
statements considering the nature of the transaction.

2.25 Exceptional items
The Company considers exceptional items to be those which derive from events ar transactions which are significant for separate disclosure by virtue of their
size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a proper understanding of the Company's financia! perfarmance. These items include, but are not limited to,
impairment charges, restructuring costs and profits and losses on disposal of subsldiarles, contingent consideration and other ane off items which meet this
definition. Ta provide a better understanding of the underlying results of the period, exceptional items are reported separately In the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

2.26 Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA”)} natifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued ‘rom lime to time. As of 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments ta the existing standards applicable to the
Campany that has not been applied.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

({fﬂce Computer Furniture and . Leasehold Vehicles Total
equipment fixtures improvements
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 953.18 158.54 206.05 592.41 - 1,310.18
Additions during the year 465.81 40.43 191.49 369.76 : 1,067.49
Disposals during the year (4.29] [3.71) [9.24) (62.12) » {79.36)
As at March 31, 2023 1,414.70 135.26 388.30 500.05 - 2,898.31
Addltions during the year 799.62 €3.17 1,500.02 947.06 . 3,409.87
Addition on account of business combination
(refer note 40) 17.27 - 5.83 . - 23.10
Dispasals during the year (23.90) (15.53) (10.54] (259.32) . (309.29)
As at March 31, 2024 2,207.68 242.90 1,983.61 1,5872.79 - 5,021.99
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2022 60.92 11.88 12.88 45.48 - 131.17
Charge for the year (refer note 26) 231.98 5937 58.08 196.59 . 546.02
Disposals for the year [0.71) [1.39) 11.52) {16.17) . [19.79)
As at March 31, 2023 292.19 69.86 69.44 225.91 - 657.40
Charge for the year (refer note 26| 539.95 95.94 437.46 315.38 - 1,388.73
Disposals far the year (8.35) 6.76) {4.04) {127.33) - {146.48)
Impairment for the year® (refer note 28) - - - 55.72 - 55.72
As at March 31, 2024 823.79 159.04 502.86 469.68 N 1,955.37
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2023 1,12251 125.40 318.86 6574.14 - 2.240.?'1“
As at March 31, 2024 1,383.90 83.86 1,480.75 1,118.11 . 4,066.62
* Pertains ta certain closed dark stores where the carrying value has exceaded its recoverable amount
Note: refer nate 15 for the details of assets given as collateral for the barrowings during the year ended March 31, 2024.
4 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Rel:::::l; Technology i°"'""':' Total Goodwill
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 - . - % .
Additions during the year - - 110.02 110.02 .
Dispasals during the year - . - - -
As at March 31, 2023 - - 110.02 110.02 -
Additions during the year . - - - .
Acquisition on business combination (refer
note 40) : 279.00 189.00 - 468.00 3,816.08
Dispasals during the year - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 279.00 189.00 110.02 578.02 3,816.08
Accumulated amortisation and Impairment
As at Aprll 01, 2022 - . - - .
Amortisation for the year (refer note 26) - . 3.60 3.60
Dispasal for the year - - . -
As at March 31, 2023 - - 3.60 3.60 -
Amaortisation for the year (refer note 26) 27.26 18.38 22.09 67.73
Disposal for the year . - . - .
As at March 31, 2024 27.26 18.38 25.69 71.33 -
Net block
As at March 31, 2023 - - 106.42 106.42 -

As at March 31, 2024 251,74 170.62 84.33 506.69 3,816.08
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5

Income tax assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Non-current
Tax deducted at source 305.13 289.88
305.13 289.88
Inventories
As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Stock in trade (at lawer of cast or net realizable value) 419,34 47.15
419.34 47.15
Investments
As at As at
d March 31, 2024 Marchil_,_ZDB
Current
Quoted - carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}
Investments in mutual fund units 1,312.72 4,122.70
1,312,272 4,122.70
—_——
Details of aggregate amount of investments:
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and mar<et value thereof 1.312.72 4,122.70
1,312.72 41122.70
Trade receivables
{Carried at amortised cost)
Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Unsecured, considered gaod® 8,467.26 7.300.30
Trade receivables - credit impaired 262.05 -
Total 8,729.31 7,300.30
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit Impaired (262.05) -

Net 8&7.26 7,300.30

* Includes unbilled revenue

8.1 The allowance for doubtful debts as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and changes in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year ended as on
that date are as fallows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 33, 2023
Opening balance - -
Add: Transfer of provision through business combination (refer note 40) S5.80 .
Add: Provision of trade receivables - credit Impaired 206.25 -
Closing balance 262.05 -

8.2 No trade or other receivable are due from directars or other officars of the Company either severally or jointly with any ather person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. Refer note 36(b}{i} for further
details

8.3 Trade receivables are non - interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 60 days

Trade receivables ageing Schedules:

Unbilled Out ding from the due date of transaction
dues Lessthan6 6 manths-1 1-2 years 2-3 years Morethan 3 Total
months year years

As at March 31, 2024
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 358.73 8,104.44 4.09 . B . 8,467.26
good
(il) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit . 20.54 16.72 22150 3.29 - 262.05
impaired

As at March 31, 2023

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - 6,950.42 249.88 - . - msoo.iﬂ
good ﬁ

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit . - - -
impaired
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9 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cash in hand 22.70 .
Cheques in hand 8746 .
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 675.05 4,352,97
- in deposit account [with original maturity of less than three months) 200.07 »
585.28 4,352 97
10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Asat As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deposits with original maturity greater than thrae months but less than twelve months

Fixed deposit . 200.00
Margin money depasit (refer nate 10.1) 30.07 100.00
30.07 300.00

10.1 Represents the margin maoney deposits with banks as security against the overdraft/ bank guarantee facllitles.

11 Qther financial assets
(Carried at amortised cost)

As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Non Currant
Unsecured, considered goad
Security deposits* 763.17 627.06
769.17 627.06
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Margin money deposit (refer note 10.1) 325.68 .
Interest accrued on Fixed deposits - 12.86
Other recelvable** 704.91 469.77
1,030.59 482.63
*Net off provision for deposits of X 41.94 Million {March 31, 2023: NIL)
**Net off provision for receivables of 2101.07 Million (March 31, 2023: £ 9,36 Million)
12 Other assets
As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
. Non-current
Prepaid expense 0.25 9.93
Capital advancas 67.80 45.15
68.09 55.08
Current
Prepaid expense 17.37 26.34
Advance to suppliers® 222.40 285.74
Balance with statutory and government authorities 1,072.18 813.93
Others 3.77 2.92
1.;_15.72 1,128.93

* Net off provision for advances of € 172.74 Million {March 31, 2023: NiL)

< This space has been intentionally |eft blank>
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13 Equity share capital

As at As at
_March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised share capital
13,66,500 {March 31, 2023; 7,66,500) equity shares of ®10.00 each 13.67 7.67
100,000 {(March 31, 2023: 1,00,000) 0.0001% Series A compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares {'CCCPS) of 1.00 1.00
%10.00 each
14.67 8.67
{i) Equity share capital
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
Equity share capital 13.56 7.18
13.56 7.18
{ii} Instruments entirely equity in nature
0.0001% Series A compuisorily convertible cumulative preference shares {"CCCPS")
Series A i .
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 13.56 7.18
{a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
No of shares Amount in
X Million
(i) Equity share capital
As at April 01, 2022 6,76,153 6.76
Issued during the year * &
Shares issued on conversion of CCCPS during the year 42,481 0.42
As at March 31, 2023 A&GM 7.18
Issued during the year® 6,38,089 6.38
As at March 31, 2024 13,56,723 13.56
{(ii) Instruments entirely equity In nature
0.0001% Series A compulsorily convertible cumulative preferance shares ("CCCPS") No of shares Amount in
X Million
As at Aprll 01, 2022 42,481 0.42
Issued during the year = .
Converted to equity share capltal during the year {42,481) {0.42)
As at March 31, 2023 - -
Issued during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 . -

*During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has alloted 6,38,089 equity shares having a par value of % 10.00 and premium of * 6,102.00 each to
Holding Company by way of rights issue vide board resolution dated December 22, 2023.

(b} Terms/ rights attached ta equity shares
The Company has only ane dlass of equity shares having par value of ® 10 per share (March 31, 2023: 210). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. All equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The Company declares and pays dlvidends in
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts,

{c) Terms/ rights attached ta CCCPS

The Company had 0.0001% Series A CCCPS having a par value of * 10.00 per share {(March 31, 2023: % 10.00). Preference shares carry a preferential right as to
dividend at 0.0001% over equity shareholders. Where dividend on compulsority convertible cumulative preference shares Is not declared for a financial year,
the entitiement thereto Is carried forward to the subsequent years. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to shareholders' approval at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The voting rights of a preference sharehalder on a poll are in proportion to their share of the paid-up capital of the Campany
on any resalution directlyaffecting their rights.

The hoalders of series A CCCPS shall be entitled to convert all of the Series A CCCPS held by it into equity shares at any time after March 01, 2018 but before the

expiry of statutory period permitted under applicable law for conversion of preference shares.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of preference shares shall rank pari-passu to the equity share holders and in priority to the 2quity shareholders to
receive the residual assets of the Company, available for distribution to the members.
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13 Share capital (Contd..)
(d) Equity shares and Instruments entirely equity in nature held by the holding Company / ultimate holding Company is given below:

Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. % of total No. % of total
Equity shares
Swiggy Limited (formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bundl Technologies Private 13,56,722 99.99% 7,18,633 99.39%
Limited )
13,56,722 99,98% 7,18,633 99.99%

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

Name of sharehalder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. % of total No. % of total
Equity shares
Swiggy Limited /formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund/ Technologies Private 13,56,722  93.99% 718,633 99.99%
Limited)
13,56,722 39.898% 7,18,633 99.99%
- —

(f) Details of shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Name of sharehalder
No. % of total No. % of total

Equity shares
Swiggy Limited (formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund! Technologies Private 13,56,722 99.99% 7,18,633 99.99%
Limited)

13,56,722 99.99% 7,18,633 99.99%

== ——— —

(g) Buyback of shares and shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash

There has been no buy back of shares and shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to cantract without payment being received in from the date of
incorporation till March 31, 2024,

14 Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(i} Reserve and surplus
Securities premium

At the beginning of the year 1,060.90 1,060.90
Addition during the year, on issue of shares 3,803.62 -
4,954.52 1,060.90
Share based payment reserve
At the beginning of the year 30.91 1.40
Share based payment expense 245.97 29.51
276.88 3091
Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year {7,99524) {3,924.50)
Loss for the year (4,239.72) (4,070.34)
(12,234.96) (7,995.24)
Total reserve and surplus {7,003.56) {6,903.43)

{if) Items of other comprehensive income

At the beginning of the year 6.39 230
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (Refer note 31({b}) (4.05) 4.09
Other comprehensive incame for the year 2.34 6.39

Total other equity (i) +(li) (1=au1.22| g_ilm.m
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14 Other equity (Contd..} .
Nature and purpose of reserves:
Securities premium
Securities premiurr regresents the premium on issue of shares The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpose such as issue of bonus shares, utilisation
towards the share issue expenses etc. in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

Share based payment resarve
The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based oayments provided to employees as part of their remuneration.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profit f{loss) that the Campany has earned/incurred till date, less any wansfars to other reserves, dividends or other distributions
paid to sharshoiders. Retzined earnings is a free reserve available to the Campany and eligible for distribution to sharehalders, in case where it is having
positive balance representing ret earnings till date

Other Comprehensive Income
Otner comprehensive income includes re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit slans, net of *axes that will not be reclassified to statament aof profit

and lass and equity instrumznts fair valued through other comprehensive incame, net of taxes.

15 Borrowings
{Carried at amortlsed cost}

As at As at
_March 31,2020 March 31, 2023
Nan-Current
Inter-corporate deposit from ralated party (refer note 15.1) 23,347 81 25,143 69
Term Loans frem financial institution (refer note 15.4) 959.77 .
24,307.58 25,143.69
Current
Loans repayable on demand
Working capital facilities from banrks (refer note 15,5) 179.42 =
Other loans
Inter-corporate deposit from related party (refer nate 15.2) 796.33
Current maturities of long tarm borrowings {refer note 15.4} 631.82 .
Term loan from financial institution (refer note 15.3) 130.00 -
Warking capital facilities from banks (refer nate 15.5) 210.85 -
1,949.08 -

15.1 During the year ended March 31,2024, the Company has received an inter corporate deposit of X 373.20 Million (March 31 2023: 11,666.69 Million) from
its parent Swiggy Limited (formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund! Technalogies Private Limited ), and is réaayable after 6 years from the date of
borrowing for each tranche and repaid an inter corporate deposit of X 2564.16 Millions {March 31 2023: NIL). The loan carried an interest rate of 8.60% per
annum, which is payable annually from tne date of loan,

15.2 Includes interest on ICD from Holding Camgany amounting to X 796.99 Million, for the previcus year ended March 31, 2023: % 869.89 Million interest
accrued on ICD has been grouped under Other finarcial liabilities in the financial statements {refer note 17).

15.3 During the year ended March 31, 2024, the comoany availed an indian currency working capital loan from Korak Mahindra 8ank amounting to % 130.00
Million [out of the sanctioned limit of X 300.00 Million), the facility was sanctioned during August 2023 {renewed from time ta time), carried an interest rate of
11.20% P A {Repo rate plus 4.7% P.A) for a period of 12 months subject to annual review, repayable on 90 days tenor from the date of utilisation of facility. The
facitity 15 secured by pari-passu charge or the current assets and movabile fixed assets of wholly owned subsidiary, further, the facility is guaranteed by
Coraorate Guarantee from the Holding Company,

15.4 During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has availed two Indian currency term loans from HDFC Bank Limited. The first loan was for % 1,348,00
mullion which carried 3n interest rate of 8.35% P A {3 months treasury bill pius spread) with effective interest rate of 8.47%. The second loan was for ¥ 235.00
miithon which carried an nterest rate of 8 75% P A (3 months treasury bill plus soread) with effective interest rate of B.88%. 3ath loan were repayable in 10
quarterly installments.. The term loan is orimarily secured by current assets, fixed assets of the Company and corporate guaranzee from holding zompany ta
tha axtenr of 100% of the loan amount and coliaterai security to tre extent of 30% by fixed deposits by the halding compary

15.5 As part of the Lynks acquisition dated August 29, 2023 (refer note 40 for further details on Lyaks acquisition), the Company has acquired certain existing
barrowings of Lynks, such as:

inter Corporate Deposit:

{nter corporate deposit of X395 00 Million, was originally sanctioned during Aug 2023, and carries an interest rate of 10.50% P.A which is payable annually from
the date of loan. The loan is repayable after 3 years from the date of borrowing for each tranche. Subsequent to aquisition, interest rate has been changed to
8.60% P.A and term of repayment has been changed to 6 years fram tne 'borrcwing of each tranche.

Term loans from financial institutions:
Working capital loan was originally sanctioned during luly 2023, and carried an interest rate of 11.40 % P.A (Repa Rate plus 4.50% P.A) for a period of 12
months subject to annual review, repayable on 90 days tenor from the date of utilisation of facility. The loan is guaranteed by Corporate Guarantee to the
extent of 50% of the facility and Fixed Deposits Margins to the extent of 50% of the facility lien marked in favor of the Bank. The entire outstanding balance has
been repaid during the year ended March 31, 2024.
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15 Borrowings {Contd..}

Overdraft facllities frem banks:

Cash credit facility af ¥ 252 50 Miilion, consisting of overdraft and Purchase invoice financing {aut of the sanctioned limit of X 350.00 Millian), the ‘oan was
sanctioned during November 2023 (reneweo from time to time), carried an interest rate of 10.30 % - 10.65% P.A (Repo Rate plus spread) far a period of 12
months subject to annual review, repayable either an On-Demand/60 days basis the nature of utilisation of the facility. The faclity is secured by pari-passu
charae on the current assets and movable fixed assets of the wholly owned subsidiary's business. Further, the facilities are guaranteed by Corporate Guarantee
Lo the extent of 50% of the fac.lity and Fixed Deposits Margins to the extent of 50% of the facility lien marked in favor of the Banx.

Cash credit facil ty of X 137.77 Million (out of the sanctianed limit of ¥ 300,00 Million), the facility was sanctioned during August 2023 {renewed From time to
time), carried an interest rate of 10.30 % -10.35 % P A {Repo Rate pius spread |} for a period of 12 months subject ta annual review, repayable On-Demand. The
facility is secured by pari-passu charge 01 the cusrent assets and mavable property, plant arnd equipment of the wholly owned subsidiary's business, further,
the facility is guaranteed by Corporate Guarantse from the Holding Company.

16 Trade payables
{Carried at amortised cost)

As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Current
Total outstand ng dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 16.2) 298.91 31.09
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterarises 3,068.43 1,117.33

3._367.34 1,168.48

16.1 Terms and conditions for above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-40 day terms.
- Far explanation on Company's liquidity risk management, refer note 36.

16.2 Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises:
The dues to Micro and Smalt enterprises as defined in “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year. 298.81 51.09
(i) Interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year. a.61 1.05
{lii) The amount of interest paid alang with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day . -
during each accounting year.
{iv) The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but heyond e
the appointed day during the year] but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.
{v] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. Q.61 1.05
(vi) The amaunt of further interest ramaining due and payable ever in the succeeding years, until such date when the ¥ -
interest dues as above are actually paid.
16.3 Trade payable ageing " :
Unbilled due  Not due Outstanding from the due date of payment
Less than 1 1-2 year 2-3years More the 3 years Total
year
As at March 31, 2024
(i) Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 10.12 24137 47.42 - . . 298.91
(i) Others 1,228.72 1,360.45 463.23 12.41 3.62 - 3,068.43
Total 1338.84 1.601.82 _S_IES 12.41 3.62 » 3.367.34
As at March 31, 2023
(i) Micro enterprises and Small enterprises . - 51.08 - - . 51.09
{ii) Others - - 1,117.39 - - . 1,117.39
Tatal - - 1,168.43 . . - 1,168.48

" There are no disputed trade payables, hence the same are not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
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17 Other finandal liabilities

{Carried at amortised cost)
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Nan -Current
Security deposit payable 374.37
- 374.37
Current
Employee related liabilities 50,27 27.62
Security deposit payable 18.63 -
Interest accrued but not due on barrowings (refer note 33}* = 869.89
Capital creditors 7436 95.44
143.26 992.95

— =
* For the previous year ended March 31, 2023, includes Interest accrued on ICD fram Holding Campany amounting to  869.89 miflion. During the year, the
same has been grouped under borrowings in the financial statements (refer nate 15).

18 Pravisions
Asat As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2023
Non-currant
Provisian for employee benefits
Provision far gratuity {refer note 31(b}) 20.60 8.57
Current
Provision far employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 31(b)) 3.48
Provision for compensated absences 47.48 28.86
T 55
19 QOther liabilities
As at Asat
fMarch3l,2024  March 31, 2023
Current
Statutory liabilities 19.54 7.82
Advance from customers £0.85 133.22

80.38 141.04
= e
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20 Revenue from operations

21

22

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of goads
Revenue from sale of traded goods 46,172.18 32,976.11

Sale of services

Revenue from supply chain services 4,842.68 3,724.89
Other operating income {refer note 2.5) 941.66 16C.86
51,956.52 36,861.86

Disaggregation of revenue as per Ind AS 115: The entire source of revenue is in fndia and the category of revenue is the same as disclosed above.
Timing of rendering of services
Partlculars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of services and other operating income

Services rendered over time 5.776.59 3,485.75
5,776.59 3,885.75
Revenue from sale of goods and other operating income
Goods transferred at a point in time 45,179.93 32,975.11
46,179.93 32,976.11
Total 51,956.52 36,861.86
= = —a=—

Contract balances
The follawing tasle pravides information about trade receivables and advance from customers

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables (refer note 20.1 below) 8,467.26 7,300.30
Advance from Customers (refer note 20.1(a) below) 60.85 133.22
Notes:

20.1. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally carries credit period of 0 to 60 days. These include unbilled receivables which primarily relate to
the Company's rights ta consideration for work completed but not billed at the reparting date

(a) Changes in advance from customers during the year ended March 31, 2024 and the year ended March 31,2023 are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 133.22 .
Less: Revenue recognised during the year (734.41) .
Add: Advances received during the year 662.04 133.22
60.85 133.22
{b) The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
To be recognised within ane year 60.85 133.22
To be recognised in more than ane year - -
60.85 133.22
Other income
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Interest Income under the effective interest method on financial assets carried at amortised cost
- Security deposit 45.64 33,25
- Bank and other deposits 20.68 13.81
Gain on termination of leases 63.56 19.14
Income on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss 24263 3.72
Others 17.19 =
389.70 69.92
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 45,341.87 31,745.54
4241.87 31,746.54
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23 Changes in inventaries of stock-In-trade

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Stock 47.15 14,30
0n account of business cornbination {refer note 40) 25430 -
Closing Stock 419.94 47.15

(118.49) !3'2.35!

26 Employee heneflts expense

Year ended Year ended
_March31,2024 March31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 92121 538.00
Contribution to provident and other fund {refer note 31(a}) 2535 13.04
Share based payments (refer note 38) 256.64 29.51
Staff welfare 64.97 5.18
1,268.17 585.73
25 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 _March 31, 2023

Interast expense on Financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost:

Borrawings 2,134.49 1,728.08
Lease Liabilities 41020 296.89
Others 0.27 314
Qthers* 0.92 0.28
2,545.88 2,028.40

* Includes X 0.2 Million (March 31, 2023: 2 0.28 Million) pertaining to interest cost on defined benefit obligations {refer nate 31(b)).

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Yaar ended Year endad
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3} 1,388.73 546.02
Right-of- use asset (Refer note 37} 1,567.26 986.24
Other intangible assets (Refer note 4) 67.73 3.60

3,023.72 1,535.86
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27 Other expenses

27.a

28

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Supply chain management services'” 2,548.08 4,074.43
Outsourting support 307.55 24594
Repairs and maintenance
- Others 34.14 195.21
Legal and professional fees 205.79 14313
Payment to auditors (Refer note 27.a) 1.00 2.10
Technology and cloud infrastructure cost™ 139.62 117.83
Rent 61.38 84.31
Rates and taxes 111.95 78.63
Allowances for doubtful debts and receivables 288.06 42.80
Allowances for doubtful advances 172,74 g
Travelling and conveyance 4271 19.66
Power and fuel 4.24 .
Loss on disposal / write off of property, plant and equipment 141,72 52.48
Printing and stationery 9.06 .
Miscellaneous expenses [Refer note 27.1) 401.03 81.86
4,469.07 5,138.44

 previously reported as warehousing and logistics cost.
w previausly reparted as communication and technology expense.

27.1 The company, during the current year, identified embezziement of funds by a former Junior employee amounting ta % 326.76 Million averthe past periods.
The company has investigated the matter through an external Investigation team and has also filed a legal complaint against the former employee. Based on
review of the facts discovered during the investigatian, the Company has recorded an expense far the aforementioned amount during the year ended March
31, 2024.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Payment to auditors (excluding GST)
Statutory audit 1.00 2.10
1.00 2.10

Exceptional items

Year ended Yaar ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
impairment lass on property, plant and equipment® 55.72 -
55.72 -

* reprasents impairment of praperty, plant and equipment pertains to certain closed dark stares where the carrying value has exceeded the recoverable
amount.

< This space has aeen intentionally left blank>
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29

30

(a)

(b)

31

{a)

(b)

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share and Dituted Earnings Per Share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

The fallowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted oss per equity share (EPS) computations:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Face value cof equity share (%) 10.00 10.00
Loss attributable to shareholders of the company (X in Million} - (A) (4,239.72) (4,.070.34)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding - {8) 8,94,718.67 7,00,012.00
Basic and diluted loss per equity share {%) - (A/B) (4,738.61) (5.414.00)

Note: There are no CCCPS outstanding as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Income taxes

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indla‘s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss before incame tax {4,239.72) {4,070 34)
Tax charge at India's statutory income tax rate of 34.94% (March 31, 2023: 34.94%) {1,481.36) (1,422.18)
Tax effect of :

Tax benefit not recognised on account of losses in the Company 1,481.36 1,422.18
Income tax expense repored in the statement of profit and loss - .

Deferred tax
The Company is having net deferred tax assets primarily comprising of deductible temporary differances, unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward osses
under tax laws. However in the absence of reasonable certainty as to its realization of Deferred Tax Assets (DTA), DTA has not beer ¢reated

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabllity
Impact an business combination (Refer note 40) 24.83
Total {A) 24.83 -
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed brought forward lasses 2,833.08 2,263.83
Unabsorbed Depreciation 380.26 138.89
Deductible temporary differences 462.00 153.43
Total (B) 3,675.34 2,556.15
Net Deferred tax assets not recognised in the books (B-A) 3,650.51 2,556.15
Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tax losses . 8,092.52 6,463.30
Expiry {in years) 2027-2032 2027-2031

Employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plan

The Campany makes contributions ta p-ovident fund, employee State insurance scheme contributions which are defined contribution plan for qualifying
employees. Urder the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll casts to fund the benefits. The Company recognized ¥
25,35 Million (March 31, 2023: 2 8.72 Millian) for provident furd contribuzions.

Defined benefit plan

The Company offers Gratuity benefits to empioyees, a defined benefit plan, Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Tha Company's
gratuity plan is unfunded and provides for a lump sum payment to vested emplayees at retirement, death whiie in employment ar on termination of employment
of an amaunt equivalent o 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of service Vesting accurs upon campletion of five continuous years of service

Disclosure of Gratuity plan as per Ind AS 19

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Change in definad henefit obligation w/
Obligation at the beginning of the year Q 8.57 0.72
On account of business comairation (refer nate 40) L¢ 4.12 ¥
Current service cost 8.27 4.04
Interest cost (net) 0.92 0.28

Actuarial loss/(gain) (accounted thraugh OCI) T'cs‘o 4.05 {4.09)
Benefit paid : ‘% {1.85] {0.40)
- 8.00

Transfer in
Obligation 3t the end of the year ﬂv a 24.08 8.57
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31 Employment benefit plans {Cantd..)

As at Asat
8 Current and non-current classification: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current llability 3.48 .
Non-current liability 20.60 N 8.57
24.08 8.57
As at As at
C Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 8.27 4.04
Interest cast (net) 0.92 0.28
Nat gratulty cost 9.19 4.32
D Remeasurement {gains)/losses in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financlal assumption changes 0.05 {1.00)
Actuarial {gain}/ loss due to experience adjustments 4.00 (3.09)
Total expenses recognised through other comprehensive income 4.05 (4.09)
E Assumptions
Discount rate (%) 7.15% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate (%) 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition rate (%) 30.00% 30.00%
Retirement age (years) 58 58.00
Mortality rate (%) 100% of IALM 2012-14  100% of IALM 2012-14

The estimate of future salary Increases consldered, takes into account the inflation, seniarity, pramotlon, increments and other relevant factors, benefit
abligatlon such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit chligation is 4 years (March 31, 2023: 5 years)

F The expected maturity analysis of gratuity is as follows (undiscounted basis}
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expected cashflows

0-1year 3.48 0.68
2-5years 17.12 6,20
6- 10 years 10.08 4.24
> 10 years 3.60 152

G Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is shown as below:

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Decrease I| Increase Detrease | Increase
Effect of change in discount rate on DBO { -/+ 1%) 25.17 23.05 9.00 8.17
Impact of defined benefit ohligation 4.60% -4.20% 5.00% -4.70%
cffect of change in salary growth rate on DBO (-/+ 1%) 23.07 2513 8.17 8.99
Impact of defined benefit obligation -4.20% 4.40% -4.60% 4.90%
Effect of change in attrition assumption on DBO {-/+ 50%]) 3421 18.28 13.37 5.85
Impact of defined benefit abligation 42.10% -24,10% 56.00% -31.80%
Effect of change in mortality rate on DBO (-/+ 10%) 24.07 24.08 8.57 8.57
Impact of defined benefit obligation 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be reprasentative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one ancthe- as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

32 Commitments and cantingencies

{a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to he executed on capital account and not provided far:
As at March 31, 2024, tke Company had commitment of X 308.36 Millions (March 31, 2023: % 10.21 Million) tawards the procurement of property, plant and
equipment,

(b} Contingent llabllitles

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as dehts:
Income Tax demands [refer note below) 16.02 16.02

During the year ended March 2020, the Company has received an income tax order for the assessment year 2017-18 in respect of disallowances of certain
expenses and transactions, the order demanding ¥ 16.02 Million has been raised by the authorities which have been challenged by the management and have
paid an amount of ¥ 2.17 Mllllon under protest. Based on the management Internal assessment supparted by external legal counsel views bell
expenditures are deductible and is confident that the demands raised by the Assessing Officers are not tenable under the Income Tax Act,
outzome of the aforesaid matters under litigation, no pravision has been made in the books of account towards these tax demand. p@_/

-
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33 Related party transactians

i. Related partles where contral exists:
Parent C /HoldIng C

Aany/ g Lompany

Swiggy Limited {formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Sund! Technologies Private Limited )

Whoily owned subsidiory
Lynks Logistics Private Limited - w.e.f December 25, 2023

Assaciate Company of Holding Company
Loyal Hospitality Private Limited ("LHPL"} - w.e f March 01, 2023

Whally owned subsidiary of Helding C:
Supr Infotech Solutions Private Limited {"SuprDaily”)

Related parties which have significant influence with Holding Ci Y
MIH India Food Haldings B.V.{Naspers)

. Related parties under ind AS 24 and as per the Companies Act, 2013:

Key q personnel

Name Designati Date of appol t Date of Resignation
Lakshmi Nandan Reddy Cbul Director August 03, 2018

Rahul Bothra Director August 03, 2018 March 22, 2023
Phani Kishan Addepalii Director March 16, 2023

Sahit Barua Independent Directar April 18, 2024

ii. Details of transactions with the related parties:

<

Year ended Year ended
el 1) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Swiggy Limited (formerfy known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund! Technologles Private Limited )
Inter-corporate Depasit repaid to Halding Company 2,564.16 11,666.69
Emplayee benefits expense 117.27 163.47
Rent expense 477 1.65
Other Expense 14.09 42.14
Interest expense 2,036.89 1,728.09
Collected an behalf of the Halding Company 581.81 -
Szle of traded goods 976.51 1,992.11
Other operating income 907.09 147.37
Supply chain services 1,570.39 .
Reimbursment of expenses from 2,507.37 -
Purchase of investment 3,855.39 B
Equity Contribution from Halding Company* 256.64 2951
B. Supr Infotech Salutions Private Limited
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 23.07
*Consists of ESOP cross charge amounting to  256.64 Million (March 31, 2023: *29.58 Million) considered as capital infusion during the financial year.
Detalls of balance receivable from and payable to related parties are as follows:
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Swiggy Limited {formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund| Technologies Private Limited)
Trade Receivable 1,185.23 753.63
Deposits payable to 22,550.49 25,143.69
Interest payable to 796.99 869.89
Supr Infotech Solutians Private Limited

2722

Capital creditors

Lynks Logistics Private Limited
Other payabie to

All the above related party transactions are carried at arm's length price
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34 Capitai management
For the purpose of Company's capital management, capita! includes subscribed capital (2quity), securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company. The Primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to finance the sustained growth in the business and to pratect the shareholders value.

The Company is predominantly financed through borrowings, which I1s evident from the capital structure below. The Campany determines the borrowing
requirement based on the annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through borrowings
and operating cash flows generated.

The capital structure and key performance indicatars of the Company as at year end is as follows:

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| Debt to equity position:
A.Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company (6,987.66) (6,889.86)
8. Borrowings
Non-current borrowings 24,307.58 25,143,698
Short term borrawings 1,949.08 .
Tatal barrowings 26,256.66 25,143.69
C. Total capital [A+B) 19,269.00 18,253.83
D. Debt to equity ratio (%) (B/A) -376% -365%
€. Total borrowings as a % of total capital (B/C} 136% 138%
F. Total equity as a % of total capital (4/C) -36% -38%
Il Cash position:
Cash and cash equivalents 985.28 4,352.97
Other balances w'th banks 355.75 300.00
Investment in money market instruments 131272 4,122.70
2,653.75 8,775.67
35 Disclosures on tinancial instruments
(3} Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and the fair value of the financial instruments by categories is as follows:
As at As at
e e . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at amartised cost:
Trade receivabies 35.1 8.467.26 7.300.30
Other receivables 35.1 704.91 469.77
Security deposits 35.2 769.17 627.06
Interest accrued on Fixed deposits 35.1 * 12,86
9,941.34 8,409.99
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investments in mutua’ fund units 354 1,312.72 4,122.70
1,312.72 4,122.70
Cash and cash equlvalents, other balances with banks and other financial assets
Cash in hand 35.3 22.70 .
Cheques in hand 353 87.46 .
Balances with banks 353 875.12 4,352.97
Depaosits with banks {including margin money depaosits) 353 355.75 300.00
1,331.03 4,652,97
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 52 26,256.66 25,143.69
Trade payables 351 3,367.34 1,168.48
Lease liabilities 355 4,643.10 3,823.95
Other financial liabilities 35.1 143.26 1,367.32
34,410.36 31,503.44

(b} Valuation technique to determine fair value
35.1 The carrying value of these financial assets and haoilities in the financial statements are considered o be the same as their fair value, due ta their short term
nature.

35.2 The carrying value of these financial assets and liabilities in the financ al statements are carried at amortised cost, to achieve a constant effective rate of
interest gver their respective lives.

35.3 These accounts are cansidered to be highly liquid / liquid and the carrying amount of these are considered to be the same as their fair value

35.4 The fair values of investments in mutual fund units i1s based an the net asset value (‘NAV') as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published
statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the arice at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will
redeem such units from the investors.

34 5 Lease liabilities are recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments
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35 Disclosures on financial instruments (Contd..)
{c} Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from pricas).

Level 3 Inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not based on observabie market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities carried at fair value on recurring basis is as follows:

Assets Balance Fair Value Measurement for the reporting period
t 31st March 2024 . Level 1* Level 2¢ Level 3*
tnvestrnents in mutual fund units 1312.72 1,312.72
1,312.72 i,312.72
As 3t 31st March 2023
Investrments in mutua! fund units 4,122.70 4,122.70 <
4,122.70 4,122.70

* There has been na transfers between the levels during any of the years

36 Financial risk management
The Company is exposed to various financial risks majorly Credit risk, Liquidity risk, interest rate risk, Market risk and Equity price fisk. The Company's senior
management aversees the management of these risks with an objective to minimise the impact of these risks based on charters and (in)formal policies.

a. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Such changes in the
values of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is very limited as the Company doesn't have any significant foreign exchange transactions The
Company has barrowings in the nature of term loans, averdraft facility from the financial institutions and inter-carporate deposits from holding campany, where
the interest rate fluctuations are nat significant and accordingly the interest rate risk is low.

i. interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows af a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. As at March 31,
2024, the Company's debt abligation includes term loans, overdraft facilities and purchase invoice financing arrangements from the financial institutions and
inter-corporate deposit from Holding Company. Refer note 15 for further details.. As at March 31, 2024, the Company's debt obligation includes the term loan
from the financial institution which carries interest rate of 8.35%-8.75% p.a which is 3M Thill + spread, another term foan from financial institution which carries
interest rate of 11.40% which is Repa rate plus 4.7% p.a and over draft facillty with banks which carried interest rate of 10.30%-10.65% p.a, which was repo rate
plus spread. The impact of possible change in floating rate on the entity's profitability was not material.

b, Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading ta a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to cradit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and unbilled receivahles) and from its treasury activities, including deposits with
banks, investments in money market and other financial instruments. Credit risk has always been manéged by the Company through credit approvals, established
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiress of customers to which the Company grants credit in the normal course of business.

i. Trade receivables
Trade receivables as on March 31, 2024 represents receivable from customers which is in the regular course of sale of goods and supply chain services, the
Company's credit periad generally in the range of 0 to 60 days, the Company avaluates the creditworthiness of the customers on periodical basis, the averall
credit risk is low as at the reporting date. The Company does not hald collateral as security.

As per Ind AS 109, the Company uses the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. In determining the impairment allowance (allowance for
doubtfu) debts), the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a pravision matrix.
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience as well as the current sconomic conditions and is adjusted for forward looking
information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the provision matrix. Refer
note 27 for the details on allowances for doubtful debts and advances and nate 8 for the outstanding trade receivable balance which ts subject to credit risk
exposure of the Company.

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly and closely monitared basis the histerical trend, the Company provides for any outstanding receivables beyond
180 days which are doubtful, the trade recelvables on tha respective reporting dates are net off the allowances which is sufficient to cover the entire life time loss
of sales recognised including those that are currently less than 180 days outstanding, the total provision of X 206.25 Million (March 31, 2023: NIL) consists of both
these types of amounts.

ii. Financial instruments and cash depaosits
Credlt risk fram balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's approved
investment policy. investments of surplus funds are made primarily in liquid mutual fund units and fixed deposits. Investments of surplus funds are made only
with approved counterparties and within credi: limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit ratings are reviewed by the Company's Audit
Committee on periodic basis.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk far the companents of the balance sheet is the carrying amounts as illustrated in liquidity table below.
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36 Financial risk management {Contd.}
¢. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to meet the payment obligations resulting fram financial liabilities, which may arise from unavailability of funds. The
exposure to liquidity risk is closely monitored on Company level using regular cash farecast reports to ensure adequate distributian. The Company believes that
cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets including trade receivables are sufficient to meet its current requirements, accordingly, no liquidity risk is

perceived.
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 985.28 4,352.97
Other balance with banks 355.75 300.00
Other financial assets 11,254.06 12,532.69
12,595.09 17.185.66

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabllities at the reporting date. The amounts are based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Particulars Carrying value On Demand 0-180 days 180- 360 days More than 360 days Total

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings 26,256.66 175.42 1,134.21 647.57 24,297.50 26,258.71

Trade payables 3,367.34 - 3,367.34 B . 3,367.34

Lease liabilities 4,643.10 . 953.50 849.66 3,606.69 5,409.85

Other financial liabilities 143.26 - 143.26 = - 143.26
34,410.36 179.42 5,598.31 1,497.24 27,904.19 35,179.16

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings 25,143.69 - - 1,292.64 34,796.90 36,089.64

Trade payables 1,168.48 - 1,168.48 . " 1,168.48

Lease liabilities 3,823.95 . 635.67 640,32 3,202.06 4,478.05

Other financial llabilities 1.367.32 . 820.89 172.06 374.37 1,367.32
31,503.44 - 2,625.04 2,105.02 38,373.33 43,103.49

d. Equity price risk
The Company does nat have any material exposures to equity price risk.

37 teases
The Company has entered into lease contracts for premises ta use it for commercial purpose ta carry out it business i.e. office Buildings and for its aperations.
These lease contracts of premises have lease terms between 2 and 9 years. Lease agreements does not depict any restrictions/covenants imposed by lessar. The
Company also has certain leases of buildings {temporary spaces) with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company has elected to apply the recognition
exemption for leases with a lease term (or remaining lease term) of twelve months or less. Payments assaciated with short-term leases and low-vaiue assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense In profit or loss over the lease term.

A The carrying amaunts of right-of-use assets recog d and the during the year:
{ % in Millions]

Particular Building

Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2022 2,158.23
Additions 3,138.02
Disposal/ derecognition during the year (513.48)

As at March 31, 2023 4,782.27
Additions 3,461.68
Addition on account af business combination 113.16
Disposal/ derecognition during the year {1,787.66)

As at March 31, 2024 5,569.95

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2022 143.99
Charge for the year 98€.24
Disposal/ derecognition during the year {85.48}

As at March 31, 2023 1,044.75
Charge for the year 1,567.26
Disposal/ derecognition during the year {523.34)

As at March 31, 2024 2,088.67

Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2023
As at March 31, 2024
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B The carrying amounts of lease liabllitles (Included under financial liabilities) and the movements during the year:

Particular

[%in Millisns)
As at Aprll 01, 2022 1,987.20
Additions 3,085.48
Deletlons (436.34)
Accretion of interest 296.89
Payment {1.079.88)
As at March 31, 2023 3,823.95
Additions 3,374.76
Addition on account of business combination 113.20
Deletions (1,193.68)
Reduction in lease liability due to lease modification (111.80)
Accretion of interest 410,20
Payment {1,773.52)
As at March 31, 2024 4I643.10
Current and Non-current dassification: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current liability 1,568.52 1,219.69
Non-current liahility 3.073.58 2.604.26
464310 3,823.95
€ The recognised in the of profit and loss:
As at Yesr ended
March 31, 2024 March31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (refer note 26) 1,567.26 986.24
Interest expense on lease liabilitles {refer note 25) 410.20 296,89
Galn on termination of Leases (refer note 21) 63.56 19.14
2,041.02 1,302.27
D Maturity analysls of lease liabllities - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 1,803.17 1,275.54
One to flve years 3,549.94 3,147.41
More than five years 56.74 55.10
5,409.85 ﬁ'4?8=.l£‘

£ Other discasures
I. Expenses relating to short-term leases have been disclosed under rent expenses in note 27

il. The incrementa! borrowing rate of 7.55%-8.50% p.a. {March 32, 2023: 7.55%-8.50% p.a) has been applied to lease liabllities recognised in the Balance sheet,
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38 Employee stock option plan

39

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company's eligible employees were granted employee stock options by its holding company - “Swiggy Limited
{formerly known as Swiggy Private Limited, Bund! Technologies Private Limited}".

The Company recognizes compensation expenses refating to these share-based payments using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment,
These Employee Stock Optians granted are measured by reference ta the fair value of the instrument at the date of grant. ‘Swiggy Limited does nat recharge the
ESOP expenses relating to Scootsy Logistics Private Limited employees. These expense are recognised in the statement of profit and loss under employee stock
option expense with a corresponding credit in 'Other equity'. The detail below captures the information of the entire plan of the Holding Company.

No of equity .
i . Remaining life
Particulars No of options  shares arising out Exercise price (vears)*
of options
March 31, 2024
Bund! ESOP 2015 Plan 93,205 13,05,80,205 1,401.00 82.46
Bundl ESOP 2021 Plan 19,545 2,73,82,545 1,401.00 82.46
March 31, 2023
Bundi ESOP 2015 Plan 77,523 10,86,09,723 1,401.00 83.01
Bund| ESOP 2021 Plan 24,776 3,47,11,176 1,401.00 83.01
* Weighted average remaining contractual life in years
Emplayee benefit plans (Contd..)
Year ended March 31, 2024
January 01, 2024 October 01, 2023 July 01, 2023 to April 1, 2023 to
to ta September 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
March 31,2028  December 31,
2023
Risk free interest rate 7.05% 7.12% 6.97% 7.14%
Expected life of options granted 5.01 5.01 5.01 S.01
Expected volatility {weighted average) 55.92% 55.28% 54.97% 54.85%
Dividend Yield {%} . . . .
Fair value of the option (in X) 2,93,509.50 2,17,656.14 2,17,649.22 2,01,171.55
Exercise price (In X) 1,401.00 1,401.00 1,401.00 1,401.00
Employee benefit plans {Contd..)
Year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars jan01,2023t0  Oct0l, 2022 to0 Jul 01,2022t Apr01,2022tc
Mar 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022 Sep 30, 2022 Jun 30, 2022
“Risk free interest rate — 7.21% 7 20% 7.11% 6.15%
Expected life of options granted 5.01 5.01 5.01 5.01
Expected volatility {weighted average) 55.24% 53.31% 50.47% 46.29%
Dividend Yield (%) = . . .
Fair value of the option (in ? ) 1,99,137.44 2,28,908.30 2,28,908.30 2,27,879.89
Exercise price {in X) 1,40L.00 1,401.00 1,401.00 1,401.00

The expected life of stock options is based an histarical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the optians is indicative of future trends, which may also not

necessarily be the actual outcome.

Segment informatlan

Based on the 'management approach’ as defined in IND AS 108, Segment Reporting, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and
allocates resources based on the analysis of the performance of the Company as a whole. The Campany’s operations are considered to constitute a single
segment in the context of IND AS 108 Segment Reporting.

< This space has been intentionally left blank>
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40 Acquisition of businesses
Acquisition of Lynks Loglstics Limited ("“Lynks")

Lynks is engaged in the business of authorised distribution of fast-moving consumer goods ta kirana stores, small retailers etc.

The Company's parent company acquired Lynks in August 29, 2023 and then pursuant to a common control reorganisation, transferred the business by selling the
shares in Lynk to the Company followed by a business transfer through a slump sale arrangement. The acquisition by the Company from its parent was
considered to be a common control transaction as per Ind AS 103 and accordingly, the business was consolidated from the date its parent company acquired
control aver Lynks, i.e August 29, 2023.

The Holding Company has carried out the purchase price allocation ['PPA') and recorded identified Goodwill, other intangible assets and other assets in the
financial statements on initial acquisition. As part of the aforesaid transaction, goodwill of X 3,816.08 Million comprises the value af synergies arising fram the
acquisition has been recognised, none of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible far income tax purposes. however, the intangible assets
recognised are eligible for deduction for Income tax purposes.

The purchase price has been allocated based on the Management's estimates and independent appraisal of fair value.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Lynks business as at date of acqulsition were as follows :

Amount
Assets acquired
Praperty, Plant and Equipment and Other intangible assets . 23.10
Trade receivables 215.90
Inventories 254.30
Cash and cash equivalents 136.60
Other assets 323.00
Total assets acquired 952.50
Liabilities assumed
Trade payables 128.41
Borrowings 1,241.14
Provision 4.10
Other liabilities 7.94
Total liabilities 1!381.59
Total identifiable net assets at fair value {428.69)
Fair value of intangible assets identified
Vendor relationships 279.00
Technology 189.00
Total identifiabie net assets at fair value 468.00
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3,816.08
Total purchase consideration 3,855.39

Below is @ summary of the transactions (including revenue and expenses) carried out by Lynks post August 29, 2023 have been incorporated into the financial
statements of the Company.

Particulars August 30, 2023 to
March 31, 2024*

Revenue from Operations 2,706.10
Other Income 1.30

2,707.40
Purchase of Traded goods 2,610.88
Change in inventories of Stock-in-trade 16.26
Employee Benefits Expense 191.47
Finance Costs 72.43
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 27.28
Other Expenses 170.69

3,089.06

Loss before tax -381.66

l

*Includes all the transactions carried by Lynks on behalf of the Company.

From the date of acquisition till the year ended March 31, 2024, acquired business has contributed % 3,529.21 Million of revenue and < 489.36 Million to the loss
from operations of the campany. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2024, revenue from operations would have
been % 54,167.63 Million and the lass far the year ended March 31, 2024 would have been ¥ 4,595.46 Million.

< This space has been intentionally left blank>
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41 Ratlos

The ratlos for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

As at As at Varlance
Ratios N D i Reason far
March31,2024  March 31, 2023 {in %} change

GHFECHFRTI (N Current assets Current llabllities 189 499 -62.08% @
times)
. Earnings for
Caverage Ratio 8197 pebt service 0.30 019 -257.58% {b)

) debt service
{in times)
Debt equlty " : {h)

g - -4. 2.43%
ratio (in times) Total debt! Shareholder's equity 431 4.20
Return on (c)
" i . . -2

equity ratio (%] Net Loss Average shareholder's equity 61.10% 83.54% 6.86%
Inventory
turnover ratio ::;: gFapad: Average inventory 192,55 1,034.72 -81.39% (d)
{in times)
Trade

ivab Net credit
i . ki Average accounts receivables 6.59 475 38.68% (e)
tumaver ratio  sales
{in times)
Trade payables .

Net cred
turnover ratio " Average accounts payable 21.96 26,81 -18.07% {h)
. purchases
{in times)
Net capital
turnaver ratio  Net Sales Average Working Capital 504.81% 330.91% 52.55% {f
{in imes)
?I’:)t profit ratio et Loss Net sales -B.16% -11.04% -26.09% e
Return on Eaming Before
capital Interestand  Capital employed ® -7.09% -9.25% -23.38% )
employed (%) Tax
Return on
i h . .18 17.67% h

Inv ents (%) NetIncome  Welghted average Cost of Investment 7.27% 6.18% (h)

" Debt includes lease llabillties and excludes interest accrued

Notes:

(a} Due to increase in current liabillties during the year.

{b) Due to overall Increase in aarnings for debt service durling the year.

(c) Due to increase in Avarage shareholder's equity during the yaar.

(d) Due to increase in average inventory during the year.

(e) Due to overall increase in revenue during the year,

() Revenue growth along with higher efficiency on working capital Improvement has resulted in an Improvement in the ratio.
{g) Due to increase in net sales is higher in comparision to previous year

{h) The variance Is <25%. Hence, no reasan has to be stated as per schedule lll requirement.
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42 QOther statutory information:

{i) The Company daes nat have any 8enami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending against the Campany for holding any Benami praperty.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with campanies struck off.
{iil) The Campany has not revalued its praperty, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year.
(iv) The Company has nottraded or invested in Crypta currency or Virtuat Currency during the financial year.
{v) The Company has not advanced or loaned ar invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
{vi) The Company has not received any fund from any persan(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the iike an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
vii) The Company has not made any such transaction which is nat recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered ar disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1961.
{Viii)None of the entities in the Coampanyhave been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finandial institution or government or any government authority
(ix] The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,
(x) The Campany has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accaunting impact on current ar previous financial year.

43 Corporate Soclal Responsibility {'CSR') activity
As per Section 135 of The Company's Act, 2013, a Corpaorate Sacial Responsihility (‘CSR*) committee has been formed by Company. The primary function of the
committee is to assist the Board of Directors in formulating a CSR policy and review the implementation and progress of the same from time to time. The CSR
policy intends to adapt the CSR activities mentioned in the Schedule VII af the Campany's Act, 2013. The Company has incurred losses during the three
immediately preceding financial years and accardingly, is not required to spend any amountfor CSR purpose.

As per our report of even date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

for8SR & Co. LLP Scootsy Logistics Private Limited

Chortered Accountants
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